# ATSCALE Technical Overview



## **Table of Contents**

Why AtScale?	1
Where Does AtScale Fit in the Analytics Stack?	2
AtScale System Component Overview	3
Metrics Store	4
Data Modeling	4
Resource Orchestration	5
Governance & Metadata Management	6
AtScale Software Component Overview	6
AtScale Design Center	6
AtScale Query Engine	8
Deployment	13
Supported Business Intelligence Tools	13
User Management and Authentication	14
Container Platforms	14
Frequently Asked Questions	14

## Why AtScale?

AtScale offers a modern approach to business intelligence and analytics in the cloud. AtScale's Semantic Layer platform enables analysts to perform sub-second, multidimensional analysis with popular BI and AI tools. Enterprises rely on AtScale to overcome data and analytics challenges, including accelerating data-driven decisions at scale, creating one compliant view of business metrics and definitions, controlling the complexity and costs of analytics, and reducing the risk of analytics.

AtScale helps enterprises:

- **Seamlessly migrate to the cloud.** Enterprises can avoid business disruption and port analytical workloads with minimal disruptions to end users.
- **Simplify the analytics infrastructure.** Enterprises can use the best tool and platform for the job without moving data or adding new data stores.
- Modernize and future-proof the analytics stack. Enterprises can use data lakes and cloud data warehouses while preparing for future platforms.
- Secure and govern data in one place. With a live, governed connection to all data in a virtual model, enterprises can eliminate data copies and their associated security risks.
- **Turbocharge analytics and machine learning initiatives.** Enterprises can instantly integrate new data sources without manual engineering because AtScale delivers a single, super-fast, business-friendly semantic interface for all data.
- See all data in a single, unified view, no matter where it is stored or how it is formatted.
- **Conduct interactive and multidimensional analyses** using business users' preferred BI tools, such as Excel, Power BI, Tableau, or another tool.
- Get consistent answers across departments and business units via AtScale's Semantic Layer, standardizing queries regardless of BI tool or query language.

## Where Does AtScale Fit in the Analytics Stack?

The AtScale Semantic Layer sits between your analytics consumption tools and your data platforms. By abstracting away the physical form and location of data, the AtScale Semantic Layer makes data stored in data lakes or data warehouses accessible with the same interface. Integration with enterprise data catalogs makes AtScale models discoverable and metadata shared seamlessly.

#### **INSIGHT GRAVITY**

Continues to diversify across a broader spectrum of analytics approaches

#### COMPLEXITY. INEFFICIENCY. SILOS. SKILL GAPS.

The complexity of managing knowledge related to business context is a fundamental obstacle

#### **DATA GRAVITY**

Continues to shift toward centralized cloud data platforms

SEMANTIC LAYER

♪

## AtScale System Component Overview

AtScale provides a single, secured, and governed workspace for distributed data. The AtScale Semantic Layer platform behaves like a logical data warehouse. The AtScale service intercepts client queries, translates logical queries into physical queries, and passes those queries onto the underlying physical data warehouse or data lake for execution. As end users interact with the data in the AtScale model, AtScale automatically creates or modifies aggregate tables to optimize performance and manage costs. AtScale will create aggregates (think materialized views) on the source data platform and determine the optimal location to store those aggregates in a federated query scenario. AtScale's automated tuning functionality works consistently regardless of the underlying data platform (data warehouse or data lake).

The combination of AtScale's semantic model, data virtualization, performance optimization, and analytics governance powers business intelligence (BI), artificial intelligence (AI), and machine learning (ML) initiatives resulting in faster, more accurate business decisions at scale.



The following sections will describe each component's inner workings and benefits.

## **Metrics Store**

AtScale speaks the languages of your analytics applications, whether business intelligence (BI) tools, AI/ML platforms, or custom applications. AtScale requires no custom client-side software installations, so anyone using Excel, Power BI, Looker, or Tableau can connect to AtScale and run queries immediately.

Unlike other semantic layer platforms that offer only a single inbound query interface, AtScale offers a wide variety of interfaces optimized for each tool, so consumers with live connections to data platforms like Snowflake, Databricks, and BigQuery will not experience a degraded experience without data extracts, cube building, or imports.

#### **Benefits include:**

- 1. Support for multiple inbound interfaces, including SQL, MDX, DAX, REST, Python.
- 2. Support for Business Intelligence and AI/ML tools, as well as custom applications using REST, JDBC, ODBC, or XMLA interfaces.
- 3. XMLA emulation to support native Excel Pivot Tables and CUBEX functions and Power BI Tabular (DAX) models.

### **Data Modeling**

The key to the AtScale Semantic Layer is the AtScale Semantic Model. The best way to get everyone on the same page is to have everyone speaking the same language. This ensures that there won't be conflicting answers to the same questions. A single, centralized workspace for business metrics and definitions is critical to offering one consistent, compliant view of data to business users and data scientists.

AtScale's semantic modeling tool, Design Center, works for multiple personas, including business analysts and data engineers, in a single, collaborative environment. Since AtScale Semantic Models are stored as software code in a shareable repository, models can be seamlessly integrated into your software development lifecycle (SDLC) with full CI/CD support using Git. In AtScale, every semantic object is shareable, enabling a truly decentralized but governed approach to building data products.

#### **Benefits include:**

- 1. Object-oriented modeling using Semantic Modeling Language (SML) promotes sharing and collaboration while drastically simplifying semantic model-building.
- 2. The power of a multi-dimensional engine makes even the most complex business processes easy to model.
- Built-in Interpreters for other semantic modeling platforms like dbt, Power BI, and Looker mean that AtScale can serve any existing model regardless of the modeling language used.

### **Resource Orchestration**

Gathering live data from multiple sources across the organization can be a long, manual process. Data engineers should create new value for the business rather than simply preparing and moving data for business reporting.

AtScale's autonomous performance optimization technology identifies query patterns and creates and manages intelligent aggregates, just like the data engineering team would. The Aldriven optimizer learns from user behavior and data relationships and takes care of data updates and changes, so business users can focus on gathering insights from data, and data engineers can concentrate on other projects. With AtScale, data access is "live" when a model is published. AtScale builds aggregates in real-time in response to user activity and automatically tunes queries without additional manual intervention.

#### **Benefits include:**

- Automated and adaptive query performance management with Al-driven aggregate table creation and maintenance inside your data platform without the need for external resources and clusters.
- 2. Deep integration with your data platform that generates platform-tuned SQL to provide real-time data access without moving data.
- 3. Virtualized calculations using SQL and MDX to avoid unnecessary ETL for creating reporting tables and aggregations.

 $\mathbf{\Lambda}$ 

### **Governance & Metadata Management**

AtScale's patented security capabilities respect native data platforms' security by supporting end-to-end user delegation and impersonation. AtScale's object-level security supports user and group access rules while providing discoverability for a 360-degree feedback experience with model designers. With integrations with enterprise data catalog and governance tools, AtScale can enforce data governance rules using AtScale's virtualized governance layer.

#### **Benefits include:**

- 1. Enterprise directory integration with a wide variety of IDPs for enabling single sign-on for modelers and consumers.
- 2. Row-level and column-level security at the modeling layer for consistent real-time policy enforcement.
- 3. User impersonation for supporting pass-through security to your underlying data platform.

## AtScale Software Component Overview

#### **ATSCALE DESIGN CENTER**

AtScale Design Center is a browser-based application that data modelers or subject matter experts (SMEs) use to create and deploy AtScale Semantic Models.

A semantic model in AtScale is a logical, business-friendly representation of a business process created with source tables through a collection of Semantic Modeling Language (SML) objects like datasets, dimensions, Measures, Hierarchies calculations, and connections.

In the following screenshots, you can see how AtScale Design Center defines models.

Δ	<ul> <li>Version30073.1.23</li> </ul>		Internet	Sales.yml								lave Maria		; <b>Q</b>
125.72											12	ave Maria	• 0 :	
tes.	Repo Browser													
	Repo model_samples			Pt Colar Dimension		E factimerettales	-	19. Data Dimension	1000	Par Product Dimension	-			
8				A conc				A Date Month Hierarchy		A Product Hierarchy				
CORRECT.	Branch dmariani-dev-branch			L4 Dollar		LINUSED COL				La Product Line				
9	😥 BEPLOY					orderdate	String	La Guarter		Froduct Category				
				<u> </u>		product_info	String	L. Nueth						
₿°				San Devension		DIMENSION LEVELS INT				Le Pierlas Name				
88	Workspace	View Deployed 13					string	La Der						
20					- 4			A. Data Week Herarche		🕂 Deber Dimension 🔸				
e	READWE.md				M	style weight	String			A Order Dimension				
- 4P	<li>atscale.ymi</li>				N	MEADURE (7)	× .	🗐 (, Wee		La Distancy				
ٹ	E3 calculations			Etter Dimension		customerkey	Long	A La Pay						
	E connections			A 594		orthe-dateboy	Long.	A Resulted						
	D datasets					ordergalerity	100			Dider Line tarm				
	ET dimensions						N.	G Reporting Year	Destine					
				14 Million Contractor				La Reporting Holl Your						
	EII metrics.			15 Wengte				Heporting Quarter		🦉 Guistomer Denemation +2 -				
	models			A wear			T	T La Reporting Months		A Customet Historchy				
	internet Sales ymi			La Weight	ane 🖌			La Reporting Week		Cultories Name				
	😸 shared						11.6	L <sub>a</sub> Reporting Day		No. A succession of the				
								A Castors/9445						
								Ly Custom Year						1235
								C. Custem Quarter						100
2			ERRORS	мланнаа 🧑 неа 🕸										

This image shows the main AtScale Design Center canvas. In the center, you can see blue-titled panels representing datasets (or fact tables), green-titled panels representing normal dimensions, and gray-titled panels representing degenerate dimensions (dimensions based on a fact table). The orange arrows represent relationships between the respective objects (datasets and dimensions).

۸ -	Version 02/0343.0	@ Internet Soles yml =     IIII factinternetsales yml =       CONNECT     PERMOSIONS       BULD	AtScale Admin User
ta	Deployed Catalogs		
8	Catalog All ~	Connection Settings	
0	Centre califoge	sml-models,main	
\$•	Repo AtScale Tutorials	Cetaleg: xmi-models, main	
4 ()	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	CONNECTION DETAILS 308C pillus model (Accelhagepangine 1911) pro-enderm, maph	Cupy C
ٹ			0
		DOWNLOADS	Tableaú
		Station Model	tris 🚖
		© Internet Sales	tis 🛓
		S TPC-05 Benchmark Model	.104 J
<b>ی</b> د.		EMONS WARMING 🕕 DIFO 23	

Once a model is deployed in the AtScale Design Center, it is ready for consumption by BI users and data scientists. This image shows the connection instructions for Tableau, Excel, Power BI, and connection strings for AtScale's JDBC, ODBC, and MDX interfaces for custom applications.

#### **ATSCALE QUERY ENGINE**

The AtScale Query Engine is a query interface for BI, AI/ML tools, and custom applications. Tools can connect to AtScale via one of the following protocols:

- 1. ODBC/JDBC (SQL)
- 2. XMLA (MDX or DAX)
- 3. Python
- 4. REST

The AtScale engine appears as a PostgreSQL table for the tools that speak SQL. AtScale appears as a SQL Server Analysis Services (SSAS) cube for the tools that talk to MDX or DAX. For applications speaking REST or Python, AtScale appears as a web service.

AtScale's Semantic Layer provides the same logical view of business-friendly data regardless of the BI and AI/ML tools. Users can interact with data using the same dimensions, hierarchies, and measures defined in the Design Center. AtScale delivers data as a service to all data consumers without degrading the user experience for their respective consumption tools.

The following screenshots show how the AtScale Query Engine appears in various consumption tools.

#### **TABLEAU**

		A· 巨進軍 (···													-	Show Me
a Analytics •	Pages	III Columns (SUM/Order)	Australia (													
Internet Sales Cube		III Rows (Protect Nor	16 D													
n:ti P   ♥   ₩ •	Filters	Church 1														
ders		Sheet 1														
Customer Attributes		Product Name														
Customer Metrics	Marks	All-Purpose Bike Stand AWC Logo Cirp		_	_	_	_									
Date Attributes		Rike Wash - Dissolute														
Orders	tali Adomatic ·	Classic Vest, L														
Product Attributes	Color Size Label	Classic Vest, M Classic Vest, S														
Color A Product Hierarchy	1 Q	Pender Set - Mountain							l,							
Abo Product Line	Detail Toobp	Half-Finger Gloves, L Half-Finger Gloves, M														
Ate Product Category		Half-Finger Gloves, S	_													
Al= Product Name		Hitch Rack - 4-Biles														
Product Subcategory ID Size		HL Mountain Tire														
to: Style		Hydration Pack - 70 oc.		-												
Anc Weight		LL Mountain Thu														
		LL Road Tine	_	_												
Product Metrics		Long-Sleeve Logo Jensey, L Long-Sleeve Logo Jensey, M														
Sales Metrics		Long Sleeve Logo Jersey, 5	2													
Calculated Tax		Long-Sleave Logo Jersey,														
# Max Tax Amount		ML Mountain Tine			-											
<ul> <li>Order Quantity</li> </ul>		ML Road Tire Mountain Bottle Cage					_									
<ul> <li>Sales Amount</li> <li>Sales Amount Avg</li> </ul>		Mountain Tire Tabe														
<ul> <li>Sales Amount SStdev</li> </ul>		Mountain-100 Black, 38 📕														
# SeldProductNDC		Mountain-100 Black, 42														
Time Relative		Mountain-100 Black, 48														
Measure Names		Mountain (100 Silver, 38														
Latitude (generated)		Mountain-100 Silver, 42														
Longitude (generaled)		Mountain-100 filiver, 44														
Migrated Data (Count)		0	500	1000	1500	2000	2500	3000	3:500	4000	4500	5000	5500	6000	6500	2000
Measure Values									Order Quantity							

This image shows how the AtScale Semantic Layer for the "Internet Sales Cube" appears to consumers in Tableau. It also shows the results of the "Order Quantity by Product Name" query.

#### **POWER BI**

🛛 🗧 🐨 Untitled - Power BI Deskte	Windows 10 Enterprise - CORPTEST.INFRA.ATSCALE.COM [Running]	-	Sign in 🔵 🗕 🗗	×
Rane Convergence Clancert	View Help a r 199 or r 199 or r 199 Get Data Seech All	X	Sealesh many Bablish many Share	
Auto recovery contains some recover	All     Image: Constraint of the section	* Fitters	Visualizations	< Helds
i v Pagel de	Consilied Connectors: Template Apps	nce		

This image shows how Power BI users can leverage the built-in SQL Server Analysis Services (SSAS) connector. This means there is no need to install custom client-side drivers to access AtScale models.

日	17 Cf	Untitled - I	Power BI Desktop	P Search					Sign in 🔵 🚽 🗗	×
File Parte	X Out	Insert Get data +	Modeling View Excel Power BI SQL workbook datasets Server Dess	Help Enter Dataverse Recent data	Transform Tehnsh data - Queries	New Text More visual box visuals+ intert	New Guick Mesoure measure Calculations	Servit		•
	① Auto recovi	ery contains s	Server (j)	Analysis Services			View recovered files	×	Visualizations	v Fields
			Database (optional O Import * Connect live 1: MDX or DAX que	1			OK Carcel		> Values Add data fields here Drill through Cross-report Off O—	
Page 1	e • Page 1	Ŧ							Keep all filters On — Add dnil-through fields here	

This image shows how Power BI connects in "Live" query mode to the AtScale Query Engine.



In this image, you can see how the AtScale semantic layer for the "Internet Sales Cube" is inherited automatically in Power BI, requiring no additional models for analytics consumers.

 $\mathbf{\Lambda}$ 



This image shows how the AtScale semantic layer for the "Internet Sales Cube" appears to consumers in Power BI. This image shows the results of the "Order Quantity by Product Name" query.

#### **EXCEL**

File Hor	me insert	Page Layout For	mulas <u>Data</u> Rev	Book) – E iew View Add-i	ns Help	Team		ill me what y				් Share
Set External Data ~	New Co Res	Data Connection Wizard	Connections	T Scier	7 ×	日 日 日 日 日 日 日 日 日 日 日 日 日 日 日 日 日 日 日	What	-If Forecast s = Sheet	朝 Group 朝 Ungro 朝 Subtot	up - 🕾		
	Get & Trar	Connect to Database	Server quired to connect to the d	atabase server.		Tools	F	orecast	Outle	ne S	1	
A1	• I ×					-						
A	8	1. Server name: de.01	docker.infra.atscale.com:1	802/mia/detault		ĸ	L	M	N	0	p	Q
		and the second	decker in the acceptence in the	Contraction of Contraction								
1		2. Log on credentials										
		Use Windows A	athentication									
5			g User Name and Passwor	1								
5		User Name:										
2												
		Pirstword										
1												
3 9 0												
1			Cancel	< Back Next >	Finish	1						
2			3,00055	and Arris		1						
3												
4												
5												
6												
7												
8 9 0												
9												
1												
2												
2												
3												
3 4 5 6												
6												
7												
<u>.</u>	-				1					-		
	Sheet1	۲				4						

This image shows how Excel users can leverage the built-in SQL Server Analysis Services (SSAS) connector. This means there is no need to install custom client-side drivers to access AtScale models. Also, we are connecting using Window Authentication (Active Directory).

 $\mathbf{\Lambda}$ 

1.5 ಲೀಕ				Вос					David Mariani 🌅			
e Home insert Page La	yout Form	nulas Da	ta Review	View	Add-ins	Help	Team	PivotTable	Analyze Design (	7 Tell me	🖻 Shar	
Active Field:		up Eq Inse	ert Slicer ert Timeline er Connections Filter	Refresh Ch	Source ~	Actions	K OLAP		PivotChart Recommen PivotChart Recommen PivotTable Tools			
3 *   X ~ fr	S											
A	8	0	D	E	F	G	н	1 .				
	* Order Qu	antity							<b>PivotTable Fields</b>		·* 3	
BM		1440.514							Choose fields to add to report		0	
■ M -1 ■ M -22		7861.						_				
⇒ w - ∠z Women's Mountain Shorts, L		589.						_	Search			
Women's Mountain Shorts, N		542.							# 🖓 Product Hierar	by		
Women's Mountain Shorts, S	520.							Product Line	all g			
⊞M -27	404.							Product Category				
≡ M -28		3250.							Product Name			
≡ M - 30		3259.							Product Subcat	gory ID		
≡M-37 ≅R		10289.						_	A Ship Date Dimension			
тк #5	_	24459. 36740.							D 🗾 Date Attributes			
81		7254.							A 🗐 Size Dimension			
Grand Total		95167.										
									Drag fields between areas bel	ów:		
									T Filters	II Columns		
										and a second second		
								_				
								_				
									II Rows	2 Values		
									Product Hierarchy *	Order Quantity		
								-				
Sheet1 (+)				141					Defer Layout Update			

This image shows how the AtScale semantic layer for the "Internet Sales Cube" appears to consumers in Excel. It also shows the results of the "Order Quantity by Product Name" query.

#### JUPYTER



This image shows how the AtScale semantic layer appears to a data scientist using a notebook and AtScale's Python interface.

◭

## Deployment

AtScale installs on Kubernetes via Helm chart. Once installed, Kubernetes provides the cluster on which the AtScale services run and automates management, scaling, and failover for the services.

The AtScale Developer Community Edition is installed on Docker, which provides the platform for running and managing the AtScale container.

The AtScale instance serves as a query endpoint for BI/AI tools and a modeling endpoint for AtScale Design Center, a browser-based design environment for creating and managing models.

## **Supported Business Intelligence Tools**

Excel and Power BI contain the required drivers. SQL tools such as Tableau require an additional Hive or PostgreSQL driver.

TOOL	VERSION(S)	CONNECTION TYPE
Tableau Desktop and Server	2023.3	Thrift SQL
Looker	24.2	Thrift SQL
Excel	2021, 2019, 365	XMLA (MDX)
Power Bl	February 2024	XMLA (DAX)
Power BI Service	N/A	XMLA (DAX)

Unsupported Tools: The following BI tools have basic connection and query support, however, they are not fully supported: Microstrategy, Business Objects, Cognos, Saiku, and Spotfire.

## **User Management and Authentication**

The Identity Broker service manages AtScale users. For production environments, it can be paired with your organization's identity provider or LDAP server. AtScale supports the following identity providers and LDAP servers:

- Okta (with OpenID Connect or SAML 2.0)
- Microsoft Entra ID (with OpenID Connect or SAML 2.0)
- Windows Active Directory (supports Kerberos authentication protocol)

## **Container Platforms**

AtScale:

• Kubernetes

AtScale Developer Community Edition:

• Docker

### **Frequently Asked Questions**

#### What do I need to deploy AtScale?

AtScale can be deployed with Docker Compose or Kubernetes, supported by a Helm chart. You need to configure AtScale to point to a supported data platform as listed in the **Integrations** section of this document. While not required, you will also want to configure AtScale to access your directory service (AD/LDAP) and your external load balancer for High Availability (HA) configurations. AtScale installation requires at least one Linux server or virtual machine, and some basic prerequisites are required to install the AtScale software. You may need the appropriate JDBC/ODBC drivers for client tool access if they aren't already installed. No additional driver is necessary for Excel, Power BI, or tools that use the XMLA (MDX, DAX) protocol.

#### Is there a trial and/or open-source version of AtScale?

AtScale now offers a Developer Community Edition of AtScale that is free to download. The Developer Community Edition is a fully featured, free version of AtScale's industry-leading semantic layer platform, promoting collaboration and versatility. As users build and deploy more models, scaling is simplified, paving the way for users to transition to commercial AtScale for the enterprise seamlessly.

Get access <u>here</u>.

#### How does AtScale interact with my data platform?

AtScale is a client to your data platform(s) and will generate optimized, platform-specific SQL based on the AtScale model defined in the AtScale Design Center.

Once a model is deployed, it is immediately available for BI and/or AI/ML activity. No preprocessing or data movement is required when publishing a model. Data consumers can connect to the AtScale engine via ODBC/JDBC (SQL), XMLA (MDX, DAX), REST, or Python interfaces and begin querying the model.

AtScale intercepts inbound queries from the end user's query tools and rewrites them for execution on a data platform, leveraging any available AtScale-managed aggregates that would benefit the user's query.

Simultaneously, AtScale's machine learning algorithms monitor user activity and manage aggregations to automatically optimize query performance. AtScale creates, manages, and stores aggregate tables in a schema in the underlying data platform(s).

#### What are the options for aggregate creation?

Aggregates may be triggered in three ways:

- 1. Demand-based Aggregates are generated heuristically based on user query behavior.
- **2. Predictive Aggregates** are generated proactively based on model design. For example, dimensional aggregates may be generated to facilitate fast lookups for building reports.

**3. User-defined Aggregates** are defined by the AtScale Design Center modeler and stored inside the AtScale model. Users can specify combinations of dimensions and measures to design an aggregate manually, and these aggregates will automatically be built when the model is published.

In addition to these types, settings are available for adjusting behavior and thresholds to create demand and prediction-based aggregates.

#### How are the acceleration structures managed and kept current?

There are three methods of controlling how and when the acceleration structures are refreshed.

- 1. Aggregates may be refreshed on a time or calendar basis using AtScale's built-in scheduler.
- Aggregates may be refreshed using AtScale's file watcher utility on a file-trigger basis. This method is often used in conjunction with an ETL pipeline to trigger a refresh upon the completion of an ETL flow.
- 3. Aggregates may be refreshed using AtScale's REST API. As with the file trigger option, this method is often used in conjunction with an ETL pipeline workflow.

Aggregates can be updated either incrementally or in full refresh mode. Incremental updates allow for appending new or changed data, whereas a full refresh rebuilds the aggregates from scratch.

## About AtScale

AtScale's semantic layer platform accelerates data-driven insights, simplifying and extending BI and data science capabilities. Their platform empowers enterprise customers to democratize data, enabling self-service BI and agile analytics for impactful decision-making. For more information, please visit <u>www.atscale.com</u> and follow us on <u>LinkedIn</u>.